SID J. WHITE

DEC 88 1990

CLERK, SUPREMA COURT.

By

Deputy Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

Case No.: 1st DCA Case No.: 89-3236

BOBBY CHARLES OLIVER,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

GYPSY BAILEY ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR #0797200

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904)488-0600

COUNSEL FOR PETITIONER

Preliminary Statement

Petitioner, the State of Florida, the prosecuting authority in the trial court and appellee below, will be referred to in this brief as the state. Respondent, Bobby Charles Oliver, the defendant in the trial court and appellant below, will be referred to in this brief as respondent. References to the appendix will be noted by the symbol "A" and followed by the appropriate page number(s) in parentheses.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The state appeals the First District's decision in Oliver v. State, 15 F.L.W. D2857 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990).

The trial court adjudicated respondent guilty of two counts of possession with intent to sell cocaine and two counts of the sale of cocaine (A 1). The charges arose from two separate controlled buys of narcotics (A 1).

The First District reversed and remanded to the trial court for vacation of one of the convictions as to each transaction and for appropriate resentencing (A 1), basing its decision solely on its decision in <u>Wheeler v. State</u>, 549 So.2d 687 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989). There, the First District held that separate convictions and punishments for both crimes arising out of a single transaction and involving the same controlled substance violated double jeopardy principles (A 1).

The state timely filed its notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction, and this jurisdictional brief follows.

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The Supreme Court of Florida has jurisdiction to review a decision of a district court of appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of the Supreme Court or another district court of appeal on the same point of law. Fla. Const. art. V, §3(b)(3); Fla. R. App. P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The instant decision directly and expressly conflicts with decisions of this Court and other district courts of appeal, specifically: Porterfield v. State, 567 So.2d 429 (Fla. 1990); State v. Burton, 555 So.2d 1210 (Fla. 1989); State v. Smith, 547 So.2d 613 (Fla. 1989); Leon v. State, 563 So.2d 825 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990); and Davis v. State, 560 So.2d 1231 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990). For this reason, this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

ARGUMENT

ISSUE

WHETHER THE DECISION OF THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY AND DIRECTLY CONFLICTS WITH DECISIONS OF THIS COURT AND OTHER DISTRICT COURTS OF APPEAL.

The decision of the First District in the present case directly and expressly conflicts with decisions of both this Court and other district courts of appeal on the same point of law. These cases include: Porterfield v. State, 567 So.2d 429 (Fla. 1990); State v. Burton, 555 So.2d 1210 (Fla. 1989); State v. Smith, 547 So.2d 613 (Fla. 1989); Leon v. State, 563 So.2d 825 (Fla. 2d DCA 1990); and Davis v. State, 560 So.2d 1231 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990).

Specifically, in the present case, the First District held that respondent could not be convicted of both possession with intent to sell cocaine and the sale of that same cocaine (A 1-2), despite the fact that he committed these offenses on June 29, 1989, and the amendments to Fla. Stat. §775.021(4) (Supp. 1988) took effect on July 1, 1988. Each of the above cited cases concludes otherwise on this point of law, holding that, for offenses committed after the effective date of the amendment to section 775.021(4), Florida's legislature intended the instant offenses to be subject to separate convictions and punishments.

In <u>Porterfield</u>, the defendant was convicted of possession and sale of the same cocaine. This Court observed that, "[b]ecause the convictions at issue here are based upon incidents which occurred prior to July 1, 1988, the effective date of chapter 88-131, separate convictions and sentences are not authorized." 567 So.2d at 429 (footnote omitted). The decision of the First District in this case also conflicts with <u>Porterfield</u> on another point of law. Here, the First District based its decision solely on <u>Wheeler</u>, a case which this Court found to be "at odds" with its decision in <u>Smith</u>. 567 So.2d at 430 n.2.

In <u>Burton</u>, the defendant was convicted of possession and delivery of the same cocaine. This Court again observed that, "[b]ecause the convictions at issue here are based on an incident which occurred prior to July 1, 1988, the effective date of chapter 88-131," the district court properly concluded that the defendant could not be convicted of both offenses. 555 So.2d at 1210.

In <u>Smith</u>, the defendant was convicted of possession with intent to sell cocaine and the sale of that same cocaine. This Court examined the 1988 amendments to section 775.021(4), and concluded that Florida's legislature intended possession with intent to sell cocaine and the sale or delivery of that same cocaine to be separate offenses subject to separate convictions and punishments. However, because the defendant committed his

offenses prior to the effective date of the amendment, this Court concluded that a double jeopardy violation did occur.

In <u>Leon</u>, the defendant was convicted of trafficking in and delivery and possession of the same cocaine. Because his offenses occurred prior to the effective date of the 1988 amendment to section 775.021(4), the Second District concluded that the defendant could not be convicted of all three offenses, citing to both Burton and Smith.

In <u>Davis</u>, the defendant was convicted of possession of cocaine and delivery of that same cocaine. The Fifth District observed that two cases cited by the defendant were inapplicable because "those offenses occurred prior to the effective date of the amendment to section 775.021(4), Florida Statutes." 560 So.2d at 1231 n.1. Thus, that court affirmed the defendant's separate convictions and sentences for these offenses.

Thus, in holding that defendants cannot be separately convicted of and punished for possession with intent to sell cocaine and the sale of that same cocaine, when these offenses were committed before the effective date of the 1988 amendment to section 775.021(4), each of these cases directly conflicts with the decision of the First District in the instant matter. For this reason, this Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction.

CONCLUSION

Based on the above cited legal authorities and arguments, the state respectfully requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in this matter.