IN THE FLORIDA SUPREME COURT

CLEFF. M

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 77,122

BOBBY CHARLES OLIVER,
Respondent.

ON REVIEW FROM THE FIRST DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

NANCY A. DANIELS PUBLIC DEFENDER SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

P. DOUGLAS BRINKMEYER
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
LEON COUNTY COURTHOUSE
FOURTH FLOOR NORTH
301 SOUTH MONROE STREET
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32301
(904) 488-2458

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT FLA. BAR #197890

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

v.

BOBBY CHARLES OLIVER,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 77,122

BRIEF OF RESPONDENT ON JURISDICTION

I PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Respondent was the defendant in the trial court and the appellant in the lower tribunal. Attached hereto as an appendix is the opinion of the lower tribunal. Petitioner's brief will be referred to as "PB", followed by the appropriate page number.

II STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Respondent accepts petitioner's recitation at PB 2, but objects to the insertion of facts in the argument section, PB at 5, because those facts do not appear within the four corners of the opinion below.

III SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

Respondent will argue in this brief that petitioner not demonstrated any express and direct conflict on the same question of law, as required by art. V, sec. 3(b)(3), Fla. Const. and Fla.R.App.P. 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). The holding of the First District was that the trial court erred in convicting respondent for two counts of possession with intent to sell and two counts of sale of cocaine. None of the cases claimed to be in conflict appears in the lower tribunal's opinion. Since the conflict must appear within the four corners of the opinion over which review is sought, this Court has no jurisdiction to grant review.

IV ARGUMENT

PETITIONER HAS NOT DEMONSTRATED EXPRESS AND DIRECT CONFLICT ON THE SAME QUESTION OF LAW WITH ANY OTHER REPORTED CASE (Issue restated by respondent).

Petitioner's brief attempts to create conflict where none exists by attacking the lower tribunal's reliance on its prior decision in Wheeler v. State, 549 So.2d 687 (Fla. 1st DCA 1989), rev. dism. 560 So.2d 235 (Fla. 1990), and claiming that Wheeler and the instant case are in conflict with others. PB at 6.

Respondent notes that <u>Wheeler</u> was a rare en banc opinion of the First District, which certified three questions to this Court for review, 549 So.2d at 692. Respondent further notes that the state sought review of <u>Wheeler</u> in this Court, by filing a timely notice. After this Court issued its briefing schedule, and after this Court granted an extension of time for the state to file its brief on the merits, the state then took a voluntary dismissal of <u>Wheeler</u>.

If the state believed Wheeler was wrongly decided, it should have accepted the invitation for this Court to review the certified questions, instead of dismissing its action for discretionary review. Procedural default goes both ways.

This Court's review of a jurisdictional brief is limited by facts contained within the four corners of the opinion issued below to find conflict jurisdiction:

Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of the majority decision. ...

[T]he record itself can[not] be used to establish jurisdiction.

Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986). Since no conflict appears within that document, this Court is simply without jurisdiction to accept review.

In Mancini v. State, 312 So.2d 732 (Fla. 1975), this Court set forth the following test for conflict jurisdiction:

Our jurisdiction cannot be invoked merely because we might disagree with the decision of the district court nor because we we might have made a factual determination if we had been the trier of fact. ... [O]ur jurisdiction to review decisions of courts of appeal because of alleged conflict is invoked by (1) the announcement of a rule of law which conflicts with a rule previously announced by this court or another district, or (2) the application of a rule of law to produce a different result in a case which involves substantially the same facts as a prior case. In this second situation, the facts of the case are of the utmost importance.

Id. at 733. None of the cases cited by petitioner is found in the opinion of the lower tribunal.

None of the facts referred to by petitioner (sans record cites) appears within the four corners of the opinion. This Court has declined to return to the days of yesteryear and allow the parties to cite to the record in a jurisdictional brief. Paddock v. Chacko, 553 So.2d 168 (Fla. 1989).

If petitioner's claim of conflict is accepted, any losing party will be able to invoke this Court's jurisdiction by claiming that the court's decision is not supported by the record. Such is not the function of this Court, since the appellate courts are intended to be the final forum for review.

Since there is no conflict, this Court has no power to accept review even if it wanted to do so.

V CONCLUSION

Based upon the foregoing argument, reasoning, and citation of authority, respondent submits that this Court has no jurisdiction over this case, and so must decline to grant review.

Respectfully Submitted,

NANCY A. DANIELS
PUBLIC DEFENDER
SECOND JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

P. DOUGLAS BRINKMEYER
Fla. Bar No. 197890
Assistant Public Defender
Leon County Courthouse
Fourth Floor North
301 South Monroe Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32301
(904) 488-2458

Attorney for Respondent